ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVWM TTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS
March 28, 2007
7:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve M ke Hawker, Chair

Represent ati ve Anna Faircl ough, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Bob Roses

Representative Paul Seaton

Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son

Representati ve Sharon Cissna (via tel econference)
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 204

“"An Act relating to the public enployees' and teachers' defined
benefit retirement plans; relating to the public enployees' and
teachers' defined contribution retirement plans; relating to the
judicial retirenment system relating to the health reinbursenent
arrangenment plan for certain teachers and public enployees;
relating to the supplenental enployee benefit program relating
to the public enployees' deferred conpensation program relating
to group insurance for public enployees and retirees; nmaking
conform ng anendnents; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 206

"An Act relating to the accounting and paynent of contributions
under the defined benefit plan of the Public Enployees'
Retirement System of Alaska, to calculations of contributions
under that defined benefit plan, and to participation in, and
term nation of and amendnents to participation in, that defined
benefit plan; making conform ng amendnents; and providing for an
effective date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -1- March 28, 2007



BILL: HB 204
SHORT TI TLE: PUBLI C EMP. / TEACHERS/ JUDGES EMP. BENEFI TS
SPONSOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

03/ 16/ 07 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 16/ 07 (H) WM FI N
03/ 28/ 07 (H) WeM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

W TNESS REG STER

KATHLEEN LEA, Acting Director

Retirement Manager

Di vision of Retirenent and Benefits (DRB)

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented HB 204 on behalf of the
Department of Adm nistration and answered questi ons.

ANNETTE KREI TZER, Commi ssi oner Desi gnee

Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned t he Depar t ment of
Adm nistration's position on aspects of HB 204 and answered
guestions regardi ng HB 204.

BRI AN ANDREWS, Deputy Conmi ssi oner

Depart ment of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on HB 204.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR M KE HAWKER cal | ed the House Special Conmttee on Ways and
Means neeting to order at 7:05:24 AM Present at the call to
order were Representatives Hawker, Roses, Seaton, WIson, and
Cissna (via teleconference). Representatives Fairclough and
Gruenberg arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 204- PUBLI C EMP. / TEACHERS/ JUDGES EMP. BENEFI TS

CHAI R HAWKER announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 204, "An Act relating to the public enployees’
and teachers' defined benefit retirement plans; relating to the
public enployees' and teachers' defined contribution retirenent
plans; relating to the judicial retirenent system relating to
the health reinbursenent arrangenent plan for certain teachers
and public enployees; relating to the supplenental enployee

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 2- March 28, 2007



benefit program relating to the public enployees' deferred
conpensation program relating to group insurance for public
enpl oyees and retirees; maki ng conform ng anendnents; and
providing for an effective date."

7: 06: 50 AM

CHAI R HAVWKER expl ai ned that HB 204 and HB 206 are conponents of
an integrated package to address the unfunded pension
liabilities of the Public Enployees’ Retirenment System (PERS)
and the Teachers' Retirenment System (TRS). Both of these bills
were introduced by the House Rules Standing Committee at the
request of the governor and were initially to be integrated into
budget deci si ons. Subsequent discussions with House mnority
| eadership led to an agreenent that these bills would first be
heard for overview purposes by this commttee. He requested
that this commttee identify issues within these bills for
further resolution by the House Finance Committee in conjunction
wi th ot her budget issues.

7:08: 30 AM

KATHLEEN LEA, Acting Director, Retirement Manager, Division of
Retirement and Benefits (DRB), Departnment of Admnistration
(DOA), provided the conmttee with a PowerPoint presentation
titled "Technical Carification Bill OverviewHB 204," and dated
March 28, 2007. She said that HB 204 was introduced by Governor
Palin and devel oped in conjunction with extensive review by the
Departnment of Law (DOL), independent tax counsel, and DRB. | t
contains sone provisions that were contained in last year's
House bill 475, as well as sone new sections. She stated that
the bill's purpose is to ensure that the Defined Contribution
Retirement (DCR) Plan benefits are provided as intended. She
explained that HB 204 was drafted in consideration of the
requi renents of the federal Pension Protection Act of 2006 and

in |ight of recei pt of I nt er nal Revenue Service plan
determnation letters regarding death and disability benefits
and i ndividual accounts. She said that federal l|aw requires

previously qualified governnent plans to apply for re-
gualification every five years.

7:13:17 AM
M5. LEA explained that the bill anmends the follow ng provisions
of the DCR Plan: Cccupational Death and Disability (DD) benefit

adm nistration and funding; enpl oyer participation; menber
participation; and IRC contribution limts. Referring to slide

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 3- March 28, 2007



6, she explained that the bill provides funding for TRS
occupational DD benefits and clarifies that disabled peace

officers and firefighters shall receive nornal retirenent
benefits when they reach retirenment age. It also adds annual
cost of living adjustnments to disability and retirenent benefits
simlar to the PERS Tiers Il and Ill benefits to conply wth
| egi slative intent.

7:13:48 AM

M5. LEA explained that Senate bill 141 [passed during the 24th

| egi sl ative session] provided occupational DD benefits for the
PERS/ TRS plans, but omtted funding of the TRS portion of the
benefits - this bill provides authorization for that funding.
She went on to say that Senate bill 141 was anbi guous regarding
accrual and treatnment of survivor disability benefits, therefore
HB 204 clarifies that periods of disability can be used to neet
the service requirenents for retirenent and nedical benefit

eligibility. She said that both disability and survivor
benefits cease when a nenber reaches, or would have reached,
normal retirement eligibility. Ms. Lea opined that the

| egislature intended to provide a retirement benefit to the
di sabled nenber or to the survivor at the tinme of norma
retirement eligibility. To neet that intent, Senate bill 141
required continued contributions be made to a nenber's account
while survivor and disability benefits were being paid, she
sai d. This bill clarifies that when a nenber or a nenber's
survivor is receiving disability or survivor paynents, the
menber or nenber's survivor is not also entitled to draw agai nst
the menber's individual account bal ance. That bal ance wll be
preserved for normal retirenment, she expl ained. She expl ai ned
that a di sabl ed nenber who reaches normal retirenment eligibility
by service is eligible to have a percentage of their nedical
premuns paid by the plan based on their years of service under
the plan's nedical cost share provisions, and referred to slide
7. She noted that other technical clarifications clarify that a
nmenber is not considered disabled if he or she can perform the
duties of a conparable job for any enpl oyer.

7:16:18 AM
M5. LEA referred to slide 8 and explained that HB 204 adds

provisions for new enployers to join the DCR plan, or for
existing enployers to termnate their defined benefit (DB)

pl ans. It provides a 12-nonth time limt during which non-
vested DB enpl oyees nmay choose to convert to the DCR plan. The
bill establishes a new trust, the Al aska Retiree Health Trust,

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -4- March 28, 2007



to receive DCR plan enployer retiree health contributions. | t
sets uniform contribution anount s for al | enpl oyers
participating in the health rei nbursenment arrangenent, she said.

7:17:45 AM

CHAIR HAWKER replied to a concern regarding the nature of the
presentation by noting that his office had provided conmttee
menbers with a copy of the sectional analysis. He expl ai ned
that the witness had not been requested to provide witten
t esti nony.

7:18:52 AM

MS. LEA responded to a question by explaining that the ARH trust
will be separate from the pension trusts, its trustees wll be
from the Al aska Retirenent Managenent Board (ARMB), and it wll
be adm ni stered by the Conm ssioner of DOA She expl ai ned that
HB 204 adds the governor, |ieutenant governor, and |egislators
as menbers of the DCR plan. The bill proposes that a defined
benefit nenber enployed by a DCR plan-only enployer wll
participate in the DCR plan. She said that w thout this change,
a non-vested defined benefit nenber enployed by a DCR plan-only
enpl oyer could not participate in either plan.

7:20:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked whether a defined benefit plan
nmenber that switches to a DCR plan only enployer is required to
participate in the DCR pl an.

MS. LEA agreed with the aforenentioned situation. She said that
as of last nonth, 27 enployees who were in the DB plan have
chosen to convert to the DCR pl an.

7:21: 31 AM

M5. LEA explained that HB 204 clarifies that DB nenbers who do
not reinstate service and contributions to the DB plan before
July 1, 2010, will beconme nenbers of the DCR plan if re-enployed
by the state after the July 1, 2010 deadli ne. Senate bill 141
specified that enployers of non-vested defined benefit nenbers
who elect to convert to the DCR plan match 100 percent of the

enpl oyee contribution account. However, there are limts to the
anount of pre-tax contributions that can be placed in an
enpl oyee's account during a tax year, she said. The bill nakes
provisions to neet the intent of Senate bill 141 and the

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 5- March 28, 2007



requi renents of Internal Revenue Code (IRC) section 415(c) by
allowing paynents to be mde the followng tax year, she
expl ai ned.

7:23: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked for «clarification regarding the
changes to nmenber participation and asked if a non-vested nenber
who reinstates enploynent with the state after July 1, 2010
woul d be a nenber of the DCR plan regardl ess of which defined
benefit plan may have covered that enployee when first enployed
by the state.

M5. LEA noted that the aforenentioned characterization 1is
correct. At the tinme Senate bill 141 passed, DRB notified all
plan nmenbers in this situation and nmade further efforts to find
current address for all nenbers. She said that there are plans
to give further notice in 2009 to affected persons.

7:25:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether this provision requiring
participation in the DCR plan for enployees who separate, then
reinstate service, only applies to those who requested a refund
of their contributions.

MS. LEA agreed that the aforenentioned statenent is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if a nenber can request a parti al
refund of his or her contributions.

MS5. LEA replied that a nenber can only request a refund of all
contributions to the system

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether a nenber nust make a
paynment to refund contributions.

MS. LEA responded that all a former nenber nust do is re-enploy
and set up a reinstatenent of indebtedness. The enployee is not
required to make a paynent, but they are required to re-enploy
and becone a nmenber again before July 1, 2010.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG queried whether the enployee could

reinstate benefits if they are only re-enployed with the state
for a brief period.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 6- March 28, 2007



MS. LEA replied that the enployee nust enploy in a participating
full- or part-tinme position. There is no requirenent for how
long the enployee nust work in that position. She expl ai ned
t hat DRB has provided nenbers notification and contact
information regarding this issue.

7:27:43 AM

M5. LEA went on to explain that portions of HB 204 make changes
so as to conply with applicable IRC requirenents. She explained
that if a DCR plan nenber becane disabled prior to reaching
their five-year vesting requirenent, that nenber would be
considered 100 percent vested upon disability. This bill also
provides for survivor retirenment benefits to be paid to the
Cccupational Death and Disability fund so as to conply with the
| egislature's intent in passing Senate bill 141 and wth
applicable | RC provisions. She said that Senate bill 141
omtted |anguage necessary for conpliance wth the federal
Uni formed Services Enploynent and Re-enploynent R ghts Act
(USERRA), and that although the DCR plans are admnistered in
conpliance with USERRA, the additional |anguage in HB 204 is
necessary to maintain plan conpliance.

7:30: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES questioned whether nmany of the DCR plan
provi sions parallel existing provisions for disability benefits
and survivor provisions in the DB plans.

M5. LEA replied that it was the intent of the legislature to
make the death and disability benefits in the DCR plan simlar
to PERS Tier IIl and TRS Tier 1l provisions and that the
additions contained in HB 204 are intended to acconplish that.

7:31:11 AM

M5. LEA explained that the sections on contribution limts for
survivor benefits have been renoved due to non-conpliance wth
the IRC, and replaced with new, tax-qualifying provisions for
survivor benefits. She set forth that the second najor focus of
HB 204 are changes to the defined benefit plans. She expl ai ned
that the federal Pension Protection Act of 2006 changed sone
roll over provisions allowed in DB plans, referring to slide 13.

7:33: 29 AM

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -7- March 28, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG asked about the date of some federa
changes and whether there would be a retroactivity clause in HB
204.

M5. LEA replied that the federal changes were effective as of

August, 2006. She went on to say that the plan has been
adm nistered in conpliance with the Pension Protection Act since
it passed in 2006. For exanple, DRB has been allowing an

alternate payee to rollover contributions as allowed under
federal | aw.

7:35: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG questi oned whether DRB had the |egal
authority to so act, or whether the legislature nust act to
protect the agency.

M5. LEA replied that DRB had |legal authority under the federa
conpliance law, and that the state statute needs to be anended
to be in conformty with that | aw

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG reiterated his concern as to whether
changes may need to be nmde retroactive so that DRB is not out
of conpliance with state |aw for actions previously taken.

7:35:12 AM

ANNETTE KREI TZER, Commi ssi oner Desi gnee, Depart nent of
Adm ni stration, explained that DO.L had anple opportunity to
review HB 204, but did not make a recommendation that the bil
be retroactive.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that this be "triple checked"
because the bill could be anended if necessary.

7:35:31 AM

CHAI R HAWKER asked if there was a state statute that prohibited
DOA from followwing the federal Pensi on Protection Act
gui del i nes.

M5. LEA answered no.

M5. LEA explained that the bill makes sonme changes to enpl oyer
participation in DB plans, referring to slide 14. The changes

include redefining the rates so that they can be applied to the
total enployer payroll. She noted the bill does not change the

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 8- March 28, 2007



anount of enployer contributions for past and current service

costs. She explained that the proposed changes reduce the
enpl oyer rate anount and expand the salary base upon which the
rate is calculated. Additionally, these changes provide a
salary base to apply past service rates of enployers who no
| onger have active DB nenbers, but still have DB liability.
7:36: 55 AM

CHAI R HAWKER asked for clarification as to why this provision is
in the bill and how it may relate to the disparate cost
al l ocation and accounting provisions for enployees depending on
participation in the DCR plan or Tier I1l of the DB pl ans.
7:37:44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked for further <clarification on the
proposed changes to the enployer participation provisions.

M5. LEA explained that redefining the salary base to include the
DCR plan and DB plan participants' salaries does not increase
the enployers' contribution amount. She said that the change is
necessary because, under current |aw, the enployer rate can only

be applied to the defined benefits salary base. Therefore, if
an enployer has no active nenbers, there is no salary base on
which to calculate their enployer rate. The enployer still has

liability for retired nenbers, but no salary base, she
expl ai ned. She said that expanding the salary base to include
defined contribution salaries provides the salary base necessary
to calculate the enployers' contribution rate, as well provides
as a nmechani sm by which to pay DRB

7:39: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if enployer contribution rates would
rise or appear to rise, if the state did not expand to
consi deration of the full wage base.

M5. LEA replied that the aforenentioned characterization was
correct. She agreed that rates would appear to be increasing,
when in actuality the contribution rates my be the sane or
decr easi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that the average PERS contribution

rate is around 39 percent and asked what it would be if
cal cul ated on the entire wage base.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -9- March 28, 2007



MS. LEA replied that she could obtain that infornmation.

7:40: 28 AM
CHAIR HAWKER set forth a hypothetical to illustrate nechanica
problenms with current |aw Under the current |law, DB past

service costs are allocated only to that DB population and are
not calculated for accounting purposes and assessnment to
participants across the entire popul ation base. That could
result in a situation where an enployer, such as the city of
Anchorage, would only have a few enployees, but there could be
many retirees drawi ng on the system

7:41:55 AM

M5. LEA explained that under current law, in the aforenentioned
hypot hetical, the city of Anchorage would only pay the liability
for its enployees. However, wi thout the change proposed by HB
204, the state would have no ability to collect the liabilities
from ot her enpl oyers.

7:42: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON set forth the exanple of an enployee who
has three different nunicipal enployers over the years. She
asked whet her this suggested change allows the state to continue
collecting for that enployee's costs from all past enployers as
well as fromthe present enployer.

M5. LEA agreed that Representative WIson's description is
correct. She went on to say that HB 204 requires enployers who
choose to termnate participation in a plan pay for actuarial
studies to determne termnation costs. It further requires
that the termnation costs by paid in a lunp-sum or through a
paynment plan with DRB. In response to a question regarding the
cost of actuarial studies, she explained that the cost of an
actuarial study depends on the tinme it takes to do the study

She indicated it may take longer to conplete a study for a | arge
enpl oyer with many enpl oyees. She said that past studies for
smal | er enpl oyers have cost approximately $1500 to $8000.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked whether these studies occur when an
enpl oyee dies or retires.

M5. LEA explained that these studies occur when an enployer
chooses to termnate its entire participation in PERS.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 10- March 28, 2007



7:46:10 AM

M5. LEA told the commttee that another addition proposed in HB
204 will allow the state to intercept funds for paynment of
del i nquent contributions if those funds are held for an enpl oyer
and are not restricted by statute or otherw se appropriated for
a specific purpose.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether TRS enpl oyers could w thdraw
fromparticipation

MS. LEA acknowl edged that participation in TRS is nandatory for
all school districts.

7:47: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expressed his concern that allow ng the
state to intercept funds targeted for a certain conmunity could
potential ly bankrupt sonme smaller communities.

M5. LEA clarified that the bill's provisions would allow
intercept only of funds that were not restricted or appropriated
for a particul ar purpose.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked for further «clarification of
whi ch funds woul d be considered restricted or appropriated for a
particul ar purpose, and thus be imune from interception for
paynment of delinquent contributions.

M5. LEA ventured that the intercept provisions would include
revenue sharing funds, and for a TRS participant it nmay include

sonme education fornula funding. She enphasized that the
decision to intercept funds would not be taken lightly, but
woul d taken only after nuch consideration. She expl ai ned that

it would not apply to an enployer that was only a few weeks
behi nd, but would include an enployer that refused to pay its
contri bution.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether this neans the state
would intercept funds in the situation where an enployer wth
avai lable funds willfully refused to pay its share of pension
fund contri buti ons.

M5. LEA replied that if there were funds, this proposed change
woul d allow the state to intercept those funds.

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE -11- March 28, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG agreed that there had to be noney to
i ntercept. He set forth that his question is whether the state
woul d have the ability to intercept funds if a nunicipality on
the verge of bankruptcy states it will not nake a contribution
because it nust pay other necessary costs, such as public
safety.

7:49: 23 AM
ANNETTE KREI TZER, Comm ssi oner Desi gnee, Depart ment of

Adm nistration, opined it is inportant to consider the totality
of the PERS/TRS unfunded liabilities when considering possible

approaches to solve funding issues. She set forth that it is
advantageous to the state to have a broad array of tools to
address the PERS/TRS funding issues. She agreed that the

decision to intercept funds is a serious one that would take
much consideration and evaluation prior to any action being
t aken.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG set forth his concern regarding this
i ssue and that he considered nmunicipality's ability to pay basic
utility costs as paranobunt to that community nmaking a
contri bution.

7:51: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to recent decisions in Fairbanks
whereby the voters limted |ocal taxation. He expressed concern

as to whether other enployers will becone responsible for the
costs of nunicipalities that voluntarily refuse to contribute to
the pension liabilities. He asked whether the intercept

agreenent applies to DB and DCR pl ans.

COWMM SSI ONER DESI GNEE KREI TZER said that it does apply to both
the DB and DCR plans. She enphasized that the state has a
responsibility to all participants in PERS and it is inportant
to not let unfunded liabilities grow unchecked, or to let sone

enpl oyers refuse to pay as that will increase the liabilities.
Wiile the first tact of the state is to act to "chip away" at
the wunfunded liabilities, the intercept provision 1is an
i mport ant rem nder t hat enpl oyers cannot i gnore their

contribution responsibilities.
7:53:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES noted that under certain circunstances
poorly perform ng schools could be taken over by the state under

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -12- March 28, 2007



the provisions of the federal No Child Left Behind Act. He
queried how this may affect enployer liability. He also
expressed concern about possible state |aw changes to charter
school organization and the effect on enployer responsibility
for those enpl oyees.

COWM SSI ONER DESI GNEE  KREI TZER opined a takeover would not
resolve the school districts from liability. She indicate she
could provide further information on this issue to the
committee. She opined that nost legislators see TRS as nore of
a mandate on the state, and PERS as nore of a nandate on other
enpl oyers and the state.

7:56: 12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES agreed with the aforenmentioned description,
but warned that higher rates could be very difficult for sone
enpl oyers to neet.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH noted that charter schools are the
responsibility of their district, and that districts nay be wary
of ~charter school authorization because of the contribution
pl ans.

7:58: 00 AM

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON set forth that wthout the intercept
aut horizations, there is a risk that nmunicipalities will spend
their state noney on areas other than enployer contributions to
retirenent.

COWMWM SSI ONER DESI GNEE KREI TZER agreed that al though the
intercept agreenment provisions may seem "draconian" at first
glance, the state has a responsibility to protect all plan
parti ci pants. She enphasized that DOA is willing to discuss
considerations for review prior to intercepting funds, and
stated she would not like to see this renoved fromthe bill

7:59: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON opined that this is a needed provision as
sonetinmes nunicipalities may not nmake responsi bl e deci si ons.

CHAIR HAWKER |ikened the intercept provision to a security
agreenent in a | oan. He noted it is not intended to cause
di sruption of comunities, but it is an inportant conponent of
the state's managenent responsibilities.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 13- March 28, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG clarified that his concern is for
municipalities in dire financial straits, rather than for a
muni ci pality that has the ability to pay, but does not.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES i ndi cated he was seeking clarification, not
necessarily speaking against the intercept authority. He asked
what provi sions have been available to the state in the past to
take care of a situation where an enployer is not paying their
share.

COWMM SSI ONER DESI GNEE KREI TZER recalled that there may be sone
broad statutory | anguage.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES agreed that he had not found anything
specific in applicable statutes on this issue either.

8:02: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON questioned whether it was possible to
require that a portion of revenue sharing funds go to
outstanding pension fund debt, although he opined that the
i ntercept mechani smwas a preferabl e approach

COW SSIONER  DESIGNEE  KREITZER recalled that there is a
provi sion allow ng garnishnent of permanent fund dividends for
child support arrearages.

8:04: 06 AM

M5. LEA went on to explain that HB 204 codifies the use of
forfeitures to be applied to future enployer contributions.
Forfeitures occur when a DB nenber term nates enploynment and
elects to refund his or her own contributions. The enpl oyer
contributions remain in the enployers' asset base and are used
for paynent of benefits. She said this only applies to the DB
plan, and that this provision codifies the forfeiture practice
that DRB has been using. Ms. Lea responded to a question by
agreeing that this is a standard adm nistrative approach to
pl ans that have both enpl oyee and enpl oyer contri butions.

COWM SSI ONER DESI GNEE  KREI TZER noted that DOL  has not
recommended a retroactivity cl ause.

CHAI R HAWKER asked whether there is a statutory prohibition to
the division's current procedures.

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE -14- March 28, 2007



M5. LEA answered that there is no prohibition to the current
pr ocedur es.

8: 06: 20 AM

M5. LEA said that this bill clarifies that DB nenbers who hire
with a DCR only enployer nust participate in the DCR plan. She
said that admnistrative changes include the creation of the
Al aska Retiree Health Trust to account for retiree nedical
benefits. It will be an irrevocable trust under section 115 of
the IRC and will have the ARMB trustees as its trustees. The
Comm ssi oner of DOA, or her designee, will be the adm nistrator.
It will be funded by enployer health contributions and wll pay
retiree nedical prem uns. She set forth that the reason for
this trust 1is because concerns have been raised regarding
accounting issues. The division felt it was prudent to create a
new health trust separate from the pension trusts. Currently,
the health fund noney is accounted for separately in the pension
trust, but a separate trust would facilitate accounting and
managenent responsibilities, she expl ai ned.

8:08:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about the effect of the new trust on
determ nation of past service costs and expressed concern that
the state be able to maintain the ability to deternm ne past
service costs.

MS5. LEA said this new trust will not change how liabilities are
calculated, but will sinply change current accounting practices
and will allow the state to insure that its accounting conplies

wi th applicable I RC provisions.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON sought assurance that funds could not be
shifted between the two trusts.

MS. LEA said that currently funds are not shifted between funds.
She explained the retiree health anounts are accounted for
separately and the assets are not co-m ngl ed.

M5. LEA explained in response to a question, that since this is
a qualified plan, the IRS requires separate accounting because
of the tax nature of the plans authorized under section 115 of
the |RC She also agreed with an observation that this
accounti ng change does not affect how rates are cal cul at ed.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -15- March 28, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked whether the investnment choices wll
change with the establishnent of a new trust.

8:12:41 AM

BRI AN ANDREWS, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Revenue (DOR),
expl ai ned that the investnment strategy would not change and that
there will not be a separate portfolio or policy for the health
care trust.

8:13: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH noted that separate trusts nmy better
show fluctuations in the retirenent fund accounts so that the
ARMB board can better view and administer retirenent benefits.
She observed that if the health care account is separate, it
would allow ARMB to consider varying outside factors that may
i nfluence the draw down or the contributions to this particular
aspect of the retirenent system She opined that it may provide
an "extra insulator" to exam ne managenent of nedical benefits.

MR. ANDREWS agreed that with the aforenentioned statenent and
noted it would give "nore visibility" to the demands on the
system

COWMWM SSI ONER DESI GNEE  KREI TZER added that this change 1is
recommended by tax counsel.

8:16: 38 AM

M5. LEA went on to explain that HB 204 renoves the National

Educati on Associ ation-Al aska (NEA- Al aska) as an eligible
enpl oyer, renoves the social security tax wage base cap from
enpl oyee and enployer contributions, and conforns the plan
adm nistrator's duties across the all the plans. She expl ai ned
t hat some NEA- Al aska retirees are currently draw ng benefits.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked for clarification as to how the
new flat PERS rate wll be calculated and whether that
determination will include an examnation of who is in an
enpl oyer's system

8:19:38 AM

IVS. LEA remnded the commttee that new enployers only
participate in the DCR plan. If a current DB enployer has an
enpl oyee with NEA-Alaska tinme, the new enployer is not

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 16- March 28, 2007



responsi ble for the NEA-Al aska tine, but is only responsible for
time the enployee has spent in their enploy. 1In responding to a
gquestion as to who picks up the past cost of NEA-Al aska nenbers,
Ms. Lea set forth that she believes NEA-Al aska went through a
cl ose-out procedure with the state at the tine their |ast active
enpl oyee left service, but she wIll provide the commttee
further information on this point.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES explained that in the past, persons were
given leave from their school districts to work for NEA-Al aska
under agreenents whereby NEA-Al aska would refund the costs to
t he school districts.

8.24.08 AM

M5. LEA explained that HB 204 also contains provisions to
correct omssions and drafting errors in Senate bill 141 rel ated
to adm nistrative appeals. She noted that the change would
return regulation adoption authority to the conm ssioner of
adm ni strati on. Furthernore, it would correct an omssion in
Senate bill 141 by providing the Ofice of Admnistrative

Hearings with authority to hear appeals from the Supplenental
Benefits system t he Def erred Conpensat i on and Heal t h
Rei mbur senent Arrangenent. Wthout this change, appeals would
be heard by the Superior court.

M5. LEA summari zed that the technical changes proposed by HB 204
allow the state to adm nister retirenent benefits as intended by
the legislature, provide funding mechanisns for all benefits,
address IRC requirenents, and renove adm nistrative anbiguities.

8:27:20 AM
REPRESENTATI VE FAlI RCLOUGH asked for clarification regarding the

inclusion of only the governor, |ieutenant governor, and
| egislators in the DCR plan, but not other elected officials.

M5. LEA explained that Senate bill 141 did not include any
el ected officials. Furthernore, she said that many plan
enpl oyers wish to renove elected officials from their plans
because of the cost. She explained that nunicipal elected

officials receive a stipend of approximately $50 to $100 per
neeting, so that only a small amount of nobney goes into the DCR
plans. In conparison, state elected officials receive a salary.
She indicated it is a policy choice of the legislature whomto
i nclude in the plans.

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE -17- March 28, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH explained that elected officials in
Anchorage receive a salary conparable to that received by
| egi sl ators.

COW SSI ONER  DESI GNEE  KREI TZER explained this was a policy
determ nati on she nmade when crafting the bill, and noted she did
not see a nmethod to separate nunicipalities for purposes of
inclusion in the plan.

CHAI R HAWKER queried whether it would be possible to set up a
met hod by which nunicipalities could chose whether to opt in to
t he pl an.

COWM SSI ONER DESI GNEE KREI TZER expressed reservations with the
af orenenti oned approach absent other changes to the system

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked whether there could be a m nimm
salary floor for an elected official to participate in a plan.

COW SSI ONER  DESI GNEE  KREI TZER noted she would consider the
effect of such a change and could get back to the commttee.
She enphasized that she spent considerable effort in her
exam nation of this issue. In response to further questions,
she noted that sonme elected officials, such as the mayor of
Anchorage, may be considered an enployee whereas other elected
officials, such as assenbly nenbers, are not.

8:33:48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH opi ned that Anchorage assenbly nenbers
are |ikely considered enpl oyees.

8:34: 23 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON set forth that under the current system
muni ci palities are responsible for their enployee costs.

However, if PERS becones a unified system all enployers wll
share in all costs.

COWM SSI ONER DESI GNEE KREI TZER said she has anal yzed this based
on a cost share system but not under the current system

8:35:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES noted that in the past, an elected official
could receive a very small salary and serve eight years, yet

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 18- March 28, 2007



receive full retirement benefits despite contributing little to
the system

COWMM SSI ONER DESI GNEE KREI TZER answered that the aforenentioned
scenario will not change unless the cost share bill [HB 206]
passes. In response to a question, she opined that House bill
475 from |l ast session captured nost of the aspects from Senate
bill 141 that required addressing. She said that HB 204 further
expands and clarifies the provisions of House Bill 475.

[ HB 204 was hel d over.]
ADJ OQURNNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Committee on Ways and Means neeting was adjourned at
8:40: 46 AM

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -19- March 28, 2007



